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Date: March 28, 2014 

To: llbJl'I I 
Expert Transportation Security Officer (BOO) 
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport 

From: ,Juan Ovalle 
Deputy Assistant Federal Security Director 
Deltas/Fort Worth International Airport 

Subject: Notice of Decision on Proposed Five (5) Day Suspension 

Reference: "1

1'_11_61 ______ -' 

This is notice that I have decided to suspend you from employment at TSA without pay for 
five (5) calendar days on the following dates March 31, 2014, through Aprll 4, 2014. You 
are to return to duty on April 7, 2014, at your scheduled shift. This decision Is made to 
promote the efflclenoy of the service and Is based on the following: 

Ch awe 1: Failure to Follow Policy 

Specification: On January 24, 2014, you were assigned to perform Walk The Line 
(WTL) procedlires at the Managed Inclusion II (Ml-2) lane at Checkpoint A-36. 
You conducted an unaulhorlzed covert test by requesting two passengers to swltoh 
Identification and boarding passes in an attempt to see if the TSO performing 
Travel Document Check (TDC) procedures would notice. You were not authorized 
to perform this self-Initiated testing. You were made aware of the proper 
procedures through your recurrent training and briefings. Your actions constitute 
of a violation of this policy. 

Charge 2: Failure to Follow Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) 

Specification: On January 24, 2014, you were assigned to perform Walk The Line 
(WTL) procedures at the Managed Inclusion II (Ml-2) lane at Checkpoint A-35, 
You failed to perform WTL procedures as described In tho BDO SOP. You were 
made aware of the proper procedures through your recurrent training and briefings. 
Your actions constitute of a vlolalion of this policy. 
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As background, on January 24, 2014, you were assigned to perform Walk The Line 
(WTL) proce~res at the Ma~aged Inclusion II (Ml-2) lane at CheckpolntA-35. You 
observed TS lbli61 performing TDC duties for the same lane. In your opinion, 
TSO rb1151 was not being thorough eno~R~ I~ hi• duties. You spoke with BDotlbJl6J I 
1'11'1 e ding your concerns and BDO b s agreed he had the same concerns. 
BO lbJl6J stated tia:/~u jhould get two passengers to switch Identification and see If It 
was noticed by TSO b s You then approached two female passengers waiting In the 
que\Je and requested for them to switch idenlification and boarding passes. You did not 
Inform the supervisor of the checkpoint of your request to the passengers nor did you 
have the authority to make such a request. 

Both passon ers entered the Ml"2 lane wllh the incorrect Identification and were checked 
by TS lbii61 TSofibii61ldld not detect the switch and allowed both passengers to 
enter In o 10 c ockpoTrirlifter their entry Into the checkpoint you brought both 
passengers to a diff•rent TDC station and checked each one's proper Identification and 
boarding pass before either passenger proceeded through he Jhockpoint. You then 
notified BDO management and Checkpoint STSOl1b1161 of the Incident. 

On February 28, 2014, you received a written notice of a proposed suspension from 
Transportation Security Manager (TSM BDOjlbJ(6J I That written notice advised you 
of your right to make an oral and/or written reply. You provided a written statement dated 
March 13, 2014, In Which you challenged the facts of the Incident. stated you felt \he 
charges were too severe and questioned why you had been allowed to remain In 
screening functions if your reliability and judgment were cause for concern. You also 
questioned why Charge 2 was not included In your pre-decisional meeting. Finally, you 
asserted !hat AFSD Timothy Joseph had requested all BDOs to observe TDC procedures 
to prevent potential security breaches. 

The decision to keep an employee In a duty status Is made on a case-by·oase basis, 
taking Into acca\mt all facts and circumstances of a particular matter. I understand your 
actions may not have been pre-planned, but that does not negate the fact you are not 
authorized to Initiate testing of a perceived security vulnerability. I also understand that 
you intentions may have been to address problems with the TDC process; however, your 
methods to do so were unacceptable. You could have spoken with the checkpoint 
supervisor or the TSO himself without Initiating testing or involving passengers. While It is 
true that Mr. Joseph did have a meeting with all BOO employees at which he asked the 
BDOs to observe the TDC process, at no time did he Indicate that It was acceptable to 
initiate testing or involve passengers or take any action towards a TSO you believed was 
not conducting TDC procedures correctly. 

Regarding Charge 1, you stated that at no point did you request any passengers to switch 
identification or boarding passes. You stated that you made a comment to two 
passengers who then swltch"ed their Information. You then questioned what evidence 
supported you embarrassed the agency or caused negativity towards TSA. You also. 
questioned what evidence supported that your actions caused any Impact on the ability 
for TSA to discharge Its mission. Next, you questioned what evidence supported that 
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your rollabilily, judgment or trustworthiness caused concern wilh TSA or tha public, You 
stated that you had seen no media reports regarding the incident and that the two 
passengers Involved did not file complaints, 

You then asserted that you did not make the statement to TSM BDO~thal your 
actions were all a part of aviation security, to the test tho s stem and make sure It was 
working the way II should, You stated you believed Mr (bl!6l recollection was 
inflammatory and untruthful. You also stated that you believed the reference of TSA MD 
1100,73-5, Section 5.A.7, was too broad and wide, as well as Inflammatory and lnsulllng. 

I find your statements regarding your actions to be disingenuous, It Is unreasonable to 
believe that two unknown passengers would take It upon themselves to switch 
identification and boarding passes based solely on a comment. In addition, In your 
response you state that "at the end of the day I did what I did for the sake of aviation 
security" which I find to be an incongruous statement if your only action, as you now 
claim, was to make a comment to two passengers. Furthar, even If that were to be 
believed, as e tenured employee, you are well aware of the Inherent Influence of your 
position with the traveling public and knew or should have known that yoLrr comments 
would have resulted In action on the part of the passenger. It is beyond the scope and 
authority of your position to either directly or Indirectly act in a manner that will cause 
covert testing on other TSA employees, 

Although I understand you may not have seen media reports or passenger complaints 
regarding your behavior that does not mean that the potential for negative notoriety does 
not exist. The two passengers that participated were fully aware of the incident as well as 
the fact that a TSA employee requested their participation, The mere fact that you 
stepped beyond the aLlthorlly and responsibility of your position, along with the fact that 
you Involved the traveling public and your actions directly affected another TSA 
employee, are the evidence that you conducted yourself In a manner that adversely 
reflected on TSA and caused both management and the traveling public to question your 
reliability, judgment and trustworthiness, Fina.!!4.!l!ere Is no evidence other than your 
mere assertion Iha statement from TSM BDO~ls Inaccurate, 

Regarding Charge 2, you also stated that the chapter of the BOO SOP referenced In the 
proposal letter did not address WTL procedures and therefore you did not understand the 
charge, 

The pre·declslonal discussion is to cover charges being considered by the proposing 
official and is not considered the final decision on charges cited because further review 
and Investigation occurs before the proposal Is ultimately Issued, A dlsclpllnary proposal 
Is the vehicle for notifying employee of charges and providing the opportunity to respond 
before any action Is determined. Per TSA Management Directive 1100.75·3, Addressing 
Unocceptab/o Performance and Behavior, Handbook, Section 8.5, states that 
management officials are not required to meet with employees before proposing 
discipline, Although management attempts to cover all topics wilh employees at the pre-
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decisional discussion, the fact remains that you were •till give the opportunity to respond 
to charge. 

Finally, you stated that you found It lnsulllng after your years of dedicated service to have 
your lntegrlly questioned. You reiterated that you had never conducted yourself In a way 
that would jeopardize your integrity, honesty or trustworthiness. You also questioned at 
point throughout your briefings and trainings never specifically dealt with covert testing 
that you were or were not allowed to perform. You slated that you conducted your duties 
with pride and commitment and that you take your responsibilities seriously, You then 
stated that you found these allegations slandero\rs and without merit. 

I reviewed your statement that you were given the Incorrect section or the BDO SOP and 
the chapter mentioned In the suspension proposal did not address the WTL procedures. I 
determined that you were not given tile updated citation or the BOO SOP at the lime of 
proposal. I then Issued you a letter on March 19, 2014, al which time I gave you an 
additional seven days to review the correct chapter or the BOO SOP and provide an 
additional written and/or oral reply. 

On March 26, 2014, you provided a written statement in which you asserted there was 
still no specific reference to the section you allegedly violated. You stated you could not 
find MY text that described authorized activities while completing WTL procedures and 
therefore you still did not understMd the charge. 

You were in fact given Section 3.5 of the BDO SOP, which was revised and Implemented 
on November 22, 2013, which describes the procedures for performing WTL. At no point 
In lhls chapter or In any previous versions, does II describe a situation of employee· 
initiated covert testing of anolher TSA employee. Nor does this section provide dlrecllon 
to engage wtlh the traveling public regarding the performance of the TDC employee. 

Your behavior as described in Charge 1 violates TSA Management Directive 1100.73·5, 
Employee Responsibilities and Code of Conduct, paragraph 5(A)(7) which states that, 
employees are responsible for "observing and abiding by all laws, rules, regulations and 
other authoritative policies and guidance." 

Your behavior as described In Charge 2 violates Chapter 3.5 of the BDO SOP which 
describes the aulhorized activities for a BOO performing WTL. 

Additionally, your behavior violates TSA MD 1100.73·5, paragraph 6(E) which states 
'While on or off·duty, employees are expected to conduct themselves In a manner that 
does not adversely reflect on TSA, or negatively Impact its ability to discharge Its mission, 
cause embarrassment to the agency, or cause the public and/or TSA to question the 
employee's reliablllly, judgment or trustworthiness," 

In determining the appropriateness of the penally, I have considered a number of factors. 
First and foremost, I considered the seriousness of the offenses and the relation to your 
position. As an Expert TSO (BOO), you are held to a higher standard of conduct because 
you are looked upon by the public as a trusted public servant as you carry out the security 
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functions of your position. Your failure to follow standardized protocol and creating your 
covert tesling, could have led to a serious security breach. The potential negative 
notoriety which you could bring to the agency adversely affected the agency's mission by 
calling Into question the Integrity of not only yourself but all TSA DFW employees. 
Additionally, we cannot tolerate employee's picking and choosing which portions of the 
SOP they will chose to follow, Your conduct ca\rses me great concern and has seriously 
diminished my confidence In your ability to carry out the wide range of responsibilities 
required of your posltlo~. It Is important that both TSA and the public have complete trust 
and confidence that you will perform your duties with honesty and integrity. I further 
considered your failure to take responsiblllty for your actions. Your continued attempt ta 
obfuscate your Involvement In self-Initiated testing that was beyond your authority and 
responslbllltles, leads me to believe that you fall to grasp the gravity of your actions and 
therefore have a low llkellhood for rehabililallon withoul disciplinary ao\lon. 

As miligatlng factors, I considered that you are a long-term employee and your overall 
performance has been satlsfaolory and you have had no disciplinary actions, since your 
hire date of August 25, 2002. You are technically proficient In all of your screening duties 
and have consistently supported the model workplace. I also gave weight to the fact that 
the passengers' correct Identification and boarding passes were checked before lhey 
proceeded into the sterile area. However, I find that the nature and seriousness of yoLJr 
conduct in these instances outweigh the mlllgating factors and warrants this suspension. 

In accordance with TSA policy, the penalty selected is In accordance with TSA's Tabla of 
Offenses and Penalties (Table), section D (4) Failure to Follow Policy, In which the 
recommended penally range·1s a Letter of Reprimand to a 14-day suspension and the 
aggravated penalty range Is 15-day suspension to removal. The penally selected Is also 
In accordance with the Table, section M (1) Failure to Follow Standard Operating 
Procedures, in which the recommended penalty range Is a 5·day suspension to removal, 
and the aggravated penally range Is removal. TSA policy states when an employee 
commils more than one offense, Iha aggravated penally range of the more serious 
offense may be considered: however I determined that a 5 day suspension is appropriate 
due to your lack of disciplinary record and your tenure wilh TSA. Therefore this proposed 
suspension Is consistent wilh the Table and thus with actions taken against other 
employees who have engaged in the same or similar offenses. Addillonally, I determined 
thal this Is the least severe action to be used to correct this Issue. 

If you cl1oose to grieve this action under the grievance procedures In TSA HCM 771·4, 
Handbook, your grievance must be submitted In wrlllng to the National Resolution Center 
(NRC) within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of this letter. The written grievance can 
be filed by email at resolytjoncenter@tsa.dhs.gov, or facsimile at (703) 603-4057 using 
TSA fonn 1115-1, Grievance Requesl. A copy of HCM 771-4 National Resolution Center 
is ·attached. 

If you are Interested in participating in mediation of this action, you can initiate the 
mediation process by calling the National Resolution Center at (571)227 ·5097 or emailing 
Resolutloncenter@tsa.dhs.gov to discuss whether your case Is eligible for mediation. You 
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(b)(6) 

should not file a written request for mediation with the NRC unfll after this discussion has 
occurred. 

If you need assistance In dealing with any personal matters, the Employee Assistance 
Program (EAP) is available to provide confidential counseling services. EAP can be 
reached by calling 1-800-222-0364. 

(b)(6) 

Date 

Please sign the acknowledgement of receipt below. Your signature does not indicate 
agreement with this action: it only represents receipt of this notice on the date signed. 

Date1 r 
(b)(6) 

·Or· 

Hand Delivered By Date 
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Cha(ge 2: Failure to ~ollow Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) 
MANAGEMENT FAILED TO FOLi.OW HIE STEPS OF PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE IN PROPOSING A 5 DAY 
SUSPENSION IHEREBYTHEMSELVF.S VIOLATING MD 1100-73-3. MANAGEMENT Al.SO fAILEO TO 
PROVIDE THIS CHARGE IN THE INTIAL PRE-DECISIONAL MEETING. 

Management's disciplinary propos~I is unjustified be<;:ause it failed to follow progressive disciplinary 
gu!dellnes set forth In The Handbook to TSA Management Directive 1100,75-3 which states that all 
adverse actions n1ust undergo a legal sufficiency review. To be legally sufficlent1 the proposing offk!<tl 
must establ!sh that: 1) The alleged miscond11ct Is supported by a pn~ponderance of evidence 2) a nexu~ 
exists between a leg!tlrnate govern1rient Interest and the alleged mlsco11duct and 3) the penalty Is 
reasonable. In this particular case, TSA m11nagen1ent has failed to sustain the third qualifying statute. 

*"Response to Updated/Corrected Reference** 

In the Proposed Disciplinary Action letter, along with the updated Corrected Reference Information I 
received on March 191 20141 I still do not understand what I am specifically being accused of and/or 
charged with in regards to vlolatlng the WIL procedures In the BOO SOP. On March 14, 2014 I 
subtnltted my response to the Proposed Disciplinary Actions lo which I stated, "In addition to your 
allegation of violatlng the SPOT SOP you stated I violated Chapter 3.6 describing the WTL procedures. 
SPOT SOP Chapter 3.6 does not address WTL procedures and therefore I do not understand the charge 
you are accusing me of." On March 19, 2014 I was notlfled by phone by STSM David Garcia who stated I 
am scheduled to n1eet with Mr. Ovalle at 1615 hours in the Terrninal D offlce. In that meeting I was 
given an updated teller regarding the c:o((ected reference to Charge 2, After receiving that l1pdated 
letter, and having reviewed it along with the SSI docun\ents I was given that \vere specific to that 
updated letter, there is still no specific or exact reference to the violation I h<1ve allcgedlyvlofated. At 
this point I'm not sure if I'm I being accused of violating BOO SOP Chapter 3.2.C&O, the BOO SOP 
Chapter 3,6 rev 2 with an lmplernentatlon date of April 1.1, 2011, or the BOO SOP Chapter 3.5 rev 3 with 
an Implementation date of November 22, 2013? Or did I vlo!ate any portion of the RBS Ml II Assessn1ent 
SOP? The SSJ materlal r was given covers all the SOP areas lam referring to ln my previous sentence, to 
which contah1s no highllghted, or specified, areas that suggests what I'm being acc~1sed of vlolatlng. In 
the original Proposed Dlsclpllnaf'Y Action letter STSM Flint stated "¥our behavior as described in Charge 
2 violates Chapter 3.6 {which was Incorrect) of the 8DO SOP which describes the authorized activities for 
a BDO performing WTL", In the BOO SOP1 Chapter 3.5, the Wfl procedures are stated however there Is 
no text that stipulates "authorized ar.tivlt!es" as STSM flint as stated. I have read and re-read the 
updated SPOT SOP, even conducted a search on 11authorlz~d activities" as stated in the allegation, and 
cannot locate any text Jn Chapter 3,5 of the BOO SOP. Furthermore I ('.annot locate any text regarding 
"authorized activities" In any portion of the SPOT soi:>. srsM Flint was very specific wlth Charge 1, 
where he stated I vlolated TSA MO 1100.73·5, however there are no specifics with Charge 2. ThP.refore 
my question remains, what exact part of the: BDO WTL SOP am I being accuse:d of vlolatlng? I do not see 
how I could provide any adequate response or defense to the entire BOO WTL SOP. 

***Additional Response to the Updated/Corrected Reference*** 

Roughly 2 years ago, If not slightly longer, all BDO's were called to the CMF by SPOT Management per 
TSA Senior leadership here at DfW. ln that meeting Mr. Tim Joseph h:ad asked all BDO's for assistance, 
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jb)(6) 

which v1as to observe the TDC oslt!on due to TDC Officers (bJl3l 49 us c § In addition to that 
1lle per orm1ng wa t c ne procedures. The 

fflg!~~~Q,'.1,lf!if!l!ll!.~tfu:ill:::::::::::::::!:~o!f;ca!!t.!;•d!!..ll!ln..tth!J!e~ueue the eooltbJ(31 49 us c § 114 I 
"' , 14\r That In itself singled out persons and 

cou 1ave appeare was pro 11ng, egar ess, a ype o acttv!ty was a direct violation of the 
SPOT SOP however it was permitted. I do not recall any BDO receiving disciplinary actlon, being 
suspended, or being terminated by vlolatlng the SPOT SOP whHe directed to perforni the above actions. 
Now I'm being accused of v!olating some Ul)known area of the SPOT WTL SOP. With that accusation I 
now face a proposed s day suspension, which concerns me at this point because l cannot provide an 
adequate response or defense due to not having any specif le reference to what portion of the SPOT WTL 
SOP I am belng accused of violating. 
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lbl161 

Dalo: March '19, 20M 

11.9, Oop~rlmnnt <'.If t!munlmul Sccurlty­
Co11111;1ll, TX ·16010 

~~fj~1~ 'fransportation 
~ ,; Security ~f Administration 

To: ~11'~11_'1~~-~ 
Expml Trnnsporlalion Soourily Officm (BDO) 

Fro1n: Juar1 Ovalle 
Deputy Assistant Fudoral Socurily Director 

Subjoct: c;orreoted l"{eferenco lnforn1ation 

You WOl'O issuod 0 Notice of Proposed rive (5) Day Susponslon, fr<)Jll ·rrt1nsportutio11 
Security Mangor (ODOW1\'~ Ion February 20, 201'\. In your reply to this proposal, 
·you stated Illa! tho BDO: I' chapter roforencod In the proposal did not apply to Walk Tho 
Uno (WTL) prococluros and therefore you did nol undorslancl Iha charge. /\rtor roview of 
all docwnet\talion, I dotonnined Iha! you were no! givon tho appropriate reference 
inforn1ation to fully understand your char~Je. 

I havo allachod !ho correct BDO SOP chapt01s, including datos of revision, which I will 
consiclor whon 1m1ldng my decision regarcllng your suspension. Since I will bo using this 
corrected malarial in molcing my decision, you hove the right to review and reply to this 
updated infonnation. If a decision is 1nade to suspend y<iu, it will not bo 1n~do or (;)ffecte<l 
om lior than your reply. If you do not roply, a clocision will be made no onrlior Ihm\ sovon 
(7) ctilond~1r days fro1n lhe dato you rocelve this !etteL 

Plrinse sign the ncl<nowlndgon1ont of receipt below. Your sifJnature dons not indicate 
aoroo1nont with this oc 1611' It onlv ro1mrnenls receipt of this notice on the date sirJned. 

, 5 c.<iet:d~ 
Dato 

VVlinoss v 
~-:1-'-( l</ (t_'{_ 
Dole 
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Date: March 13, 2014 

To: l~ib~J(~6J_~ 

Subject: 
Reference: 

Transportation Se<:urlty Manager (BOO) 
Dallas/Fort Worth lnternatlonal Airport 

!'d like to begin my response by stating my actions on January 24, 2014 were not of one to cause 
embarrassment upon anyone, cause embarrassinent an TSA, or to bring my credibility and 
tnistworthiness into question. My actions on that day were not rehearsed or preplanned. As Mr.l1h)(6l 
stated to me afterwards behind tile A35 chetkpolnt, as I briefed hlm over what had just occurred, that 
at the end of the day l did what I did for the sake of aviation security. In my wdtten reply on February 
10, 2014, after the POD meeting that took 1>lace in the aoo office v1here I was present along with you, 
Mt.~ and Mr.libJ(6J I 1 asked in writing what evidence existed to support l violated TSA 
Management Directive 1100.73-5? After providing my statement on February 10, 2014 It was 18 days 
later until I heard fro1n you, In which you added a :set:ond charge of violation of the SPOT SOP. I don't 
understand how such a :serious charge was not included in the PDD on February 10, 2014? facing the 
first charge of violating the TSA MO was serious enough but to have another very serious second charge 
added, after subnllttlng my reply In the POD meeting on February 10, 2.014. As I stated, ln my reply I 
asked for the evidence to support the accusation but there was no answers to my questions and 18 days 
later I'm facing another charge of violating the SPOT SOP. 

This event occurred on January 24, 2014 and up untU February 10, 2014 I had not heard a word about 
any "investigation" or possible "outcome" regarding the Incident that took place at A35. During this 
time l continued to perform my BOO duties daily, After (lUr February 10~~ meeting, where I was accused 
of vlolatlng the MD you quoted1 I continued to perforo1 as an f.800 and Point of Contac:t for the BOO 
team(s} as f have done for the past many years as an EBDO. On February 28, 2014 you added a second 
charge, a very serious charge, and 1 \Vas allowed to continue to perform my duties as an EBOO. How 
could any employee, who Is facing two very serious charges, be allowed to continue to perform a11y 
duties in any position? Yet In your letter you stated your confidente in my ab11lty to perform my EBDO 
duties have been dinlinlshed. 

During this time! had a conver~atlon with Mr. Tim Joseph on two occasions, pr!orto the February 10th 
rneettng, where Mr, Joseph asked lf I had sat down wlth anyone w1th BOO management to discuss what 
had occurred on January 241 2014 at the A3S checkpoint. I ixna;ned to Mr. Joseph that I had not heard 
a word from anyone With BOO management, only what Mr. b had stated which was he was waiting to 
hear frornlibJ(6J L Mr. Joseph seemed lost for words then stated/asked whatHbl(6l I had to 
do with It. I simply shrugged my shoulders and didn't have an answer for him. 

From the date of the incident untll February 101~, 16 days, I had not heard anything from SPOT 
rnanagernent in regards to the Incident. When 1 spoke ~·1lth you prior, asking If you had heard anything 
in regards to the incident, you stated you were waiting to hear back froml<bl(6l I When I spoke 
with Mr. Joseph I had e)(pla!ned that t<i him as well, to which Mr. Joseph was shocked and stated~ 
~had nothing to do with lt. Fro1n the date of the incident until the date I received the proposal of 
disciplinary action 28 days have elapsed. On february 10, 2014 you advised tne of my charg~ I was 
facing, violaltng the TSA MD arid 18 days later you added a ve.ry serious charge that I vlolated the SPOT 



TSA 15-00014 - 008692

SOP. ! guess that I simply cannot understand why tt took so long to conic to this concluslon In regards to 
the charges, the very serious chnrges1 I face? 

On January 24, 201
1
4 nly aftlons were to simply point out, not to overtly or covertly test anyone or 

anything, that TSO (b)(6) was not performing his dut!es in accordance with the TSA Travel 
Documentation Checker Standard Operating Procedures. Ttiis violation of the iDC SOP was not only 
witnes~ed bf me. lt ja~ also witnessed by EBoolibli6l lwho was standing very close to TSO 
~ TSO (b)(6) only interests were to continue hls soclal interaction with another TSO near him, !n 
which TSO Ufil(fil]stated to the other TSO "I hate doing TDC." I have also expressed that to Mr. Joseph 
when we spoke In Coppell. I did so due to the fact that Mr. Joseph had a meeting with all BDO's to 
address issues with TDC 50tne white back. In that meeting Mr. Joseph made it clear that he \Vanted 
BOO's to observe TDC officers, due to TDC Officers not paying attention to their TDC duties which were 
leading to very serious security breaches. Those same security breaches could already' exist with TSO 

Hbl(6) !actions that day, and could continue to occur when/If TSOllE:iZiiDpcrforms TDC duties. But yet 
I'm belng accused of embarrassing th!s agency and vlo!aUng the SPOT SOP, which in my opinion ls 
completely unfounded, You stated my actions could have led to a serious security breach, which l find 
lncornprehenslble considering my actions were the total opposite, are very Insulting and demeaning. 
My actions were based on the Inactions of TS (b)(6) rform his duties, by which he was not 
following the TDC SOP. What do the actions of TSO (b)(S) say? Do you, or TSA as an agency, think that 
TS~had not already caused a serious security breach by not followlng the TOC SOP? l'nl guessing 
not because many others have Informed hle that TS~conti11ues to perform TDC du tr es, 

Background: Response to Background Staten1ent/Patagraph 

In your 11ba<:kground" summary you stated that It was based on tny "oplnlon", regarding TSOII§E![]not 
being thorough enough while performing his duty at the TDC position. My opinion had nothing to do 
with it, It's what I observed. Again It wasn't only my observation lt was the same observation of 
another BOO who witnessed TSO~vlolatlng the TOC SOP by not llttlng his head up to look at the 
~gers. My "oplnlon" of TSO llfilfilJ as a perso~ployee, ha!i no bearing on the fact that TSO 
~was not performing TDC per the SOP. If TSO~had made any effort to perform his Job 

duties, within the scope of the TOC SOP, then he would not have drawn the attention of two B001s. 
Furthermore he would have realized that the passenger In front of him Wa$n1t the sarne passenger in 
the Identification he was looklng over. And agaln1 In a meeting with DAFSD Tim Joseph, it had been 
made clear that GOO's were needed to observe TDC functions to ensure security breaches did not exist. 

· e It <:lear that he wanted BOO's out walking the line l(bJl3J 49 us c § I 
That Is not part of walk the line procedures in the SPOT SOP but we were 

""'•"'in"g"a"s °'e=to'"p"'e"r"o°"rm=t"o7!-!se duties. Did that put every BOO In OFW In vlolat!on of the SPOT SOP? And 
Mr. Joseph didn't want our 11oplnlons" of how the TSO's were performing TOC functions, he wanted us 
to observe what TDC was doing ln regards to performing lOCcorrectly. Therefore once again, It Isn't my 
"opinion" TS~was not being thorough enough in his dut!es1 It was my observation that TSO 
Hadzlc was not followlng the TDC SOP, 
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Furthern1ore1 concerning your "background" summary, I again \Vant to ctarlfy \Vhat Is In my official 
statement At no point did I request any passengers to switch their Identification and boarding passes, 
At no po1ht did I order, factlltate, or instruct the passengers to do anything. And at no point dtd I ever 
Inform the passengers about performing any type of testing. I made a commnnt to two passengers who 
then switched their Information and continued on with their conversation and continued past TSO 

!(bl(ti) llS~never lifted his head to look at the two female passengers because if he would have 
he would have seen the person on the identification was not the person in front of hlm. After the two 
passengers made it past TOCJ with the incorrect documents and Identification, I followed them 1nslde 
the divesting area and verified their passports and boarding passes ln accordance with TDC SOP and 
allowed them to continue. At no time did 1 inform anyone 1 had just conducted any type of test because 
I hftd not done such test, 

You go on to state that both passengers entered the Ml·2 lane with Incorrect \dentlf!catlon however the 
two f<!malc passengers were already In the Ml-2 lane prior to TSOK!ill§IJ1>erformlng his TDC functions, 
In rny offlc!al stat€ment It was pointed out that the c:heckpoitit was alre;;idy In vlolatlon of the M1·2 SOP 
by allowfng Ml-2 to become operational, due to the TSA Pre lane being full and backEd up. The two 
females were already In the Ml-2 lane, which should have not been o~e;a\io,al in the first p1ace1 

therefore they were in the queue already about 4·6 people from TSO b (6 I had already performed 
nly walk the line procedures but due an queues not n1oving, due to the high number of passengers in 
the queues, I had already ended my WTL procedure. I did so because many pas~engers were upset It 
was taking s.o long to get through and rnany passengers dtd not want to engage In brief conversations, 
therefore I d1dn1t want to seem as if I was harassing or engaging lndh1lduals who already expressed 
interests in not speaking. That was just lrl the Ml·2 lane. The T$A Pre lane, which was overflowlng and 
parallel with the Ml·2 lane1 was full and the passengers In that lane were expressing their discontent 
verbally as well, But the difference \vas that the passengers fn the TSA Pre lane were expressing their 
discontent with more enthuslas1n and volume. 
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Ust of t:harncs: 

£lHlI.IUL1: Failure to follow Po1h:y 
TSA SHOULD MITIGATE THE PHOPOS[[) SUPENSION BECAUSE MITIGATING FACTORS WAl\HANTA 
REOUCTION IN THE PENALTY. 

M<inngen1ent shou!d rescind the proposed dlsclpllnary action of a S day st1spet\s!on because of tht! 
1nitig<1th1g f<ii:.tors In n1y c<isa, (I.e. sc!f·rcporth1g, Intent to IHCscrvc tho Integrity of stan(lard operating 
procedures of both checkpoint and SPOT), lSA Handbook to Mo 1100.13,3 (G)(G)(l) directs TSA 
1nRnap,ers to consider the following two!ve foctors In detern1lnlng the appro11rlateness of an agency's 
1u~1i<1lty: 1}the t111ture and scrlousness of the offense:2) the e1nployee's Job Jovel and ty1>e of 
en1ploytnent; 3) the e111playee1s llaSt disciplinary history; 4} the en11)loyee's past work record; S) thf! 
effect of the offctlSC on the ctnployec's "bllityto perfonn at a satisfactory level; 6) the co1\slstcncy of 
the penalty with those hnposed upon other en1ployees; 7) the consistency of the penalty with those 
hnposed upon shnllarly situated ernployees; 8} the notoriety of the offense on the <1ge11cy1s rep~1tatlon; 
9) the cl11rity of the crnp!oyee's notice of pcrfon1·1t1nce expactatlo1)s; 10) the pote11tlt1I for the 
en1ploycc's rchnblllt;itlon; 11) the n1!Ugntlng clrcutnstances surrounding thc offense such tis unusual job 
tensions, personality problems, 1nental irnpaJrn1ent, etc.; and l2) the .adequ;icy and cffectlveness of 
alternative sanctions to deter such conduct in the future by the ernployec or others. 

111 lhe pre-dr.dslorl meeting that took place on February 10, 2014 you accused n1e of only one charge, 
thnt I wns In violation of TSA Man;igetncnt Directive 1100. 73·5 under parograph 6(E) wl\lch state.~ 
"W/1ile on or off-duty, r~1nployee~· ar1.• ('X/11?<.:tcfl lo co11r/tti:1· flie111se/vcs !11111nu1u1er thot r/ous Ho! 

odver.~ely n•/le<-1 on JS/\, ot llt.'!J!ll iv1>/y ln11iacf il'i obilily hl d/sch11roe ii s 111fs~io1t, c11(/SP e111IH11rossnn•nt lo 
the OiJe/11.y, ur 1:111r~c tin: 11u/if/r: ond/or I S1\ lo !/fll.'slio1t !111• l'lll/l/oyr:1~'•; rcli!1hl/ily1 jut1u1111!nt or 
tru.~twoi rl1i11css." In 1ny rP.sponse dated February 10, 2014 I responded by asking, specifically rcg11rding 
your accllsatlot\, to which where the cvidc~1ce Is to support I Violated the Milnagctncnt Directive you 
quoted. Whcr~ Is the evidence to su1Jport I ernbarrassed this t1{!C!t1cy? Where ls the evidence to support 
the allegations reg<irdlng 1ny alleged conduct i;auslng any negativity upon TSA? Where Is the evidence 
to support th<1t I Cill!~C!d any ln11)<1Ct upon TSA to discharge its n)ission? And finally1 In regards to any 
Manago1nent Directive vio!atlon, where Is thf! evidence to support thtlt 1ny rellahlllty, judgment or 
trustworthiness ls of any issue or concern with TSA or the public? 

rrotn Junl1ary 24, 1!014 to present j have seen no rncd!a reports regardlne the inddent thi'lt took place 
that i::ould cause ~1ny en,barrilss111ent upon ISA or negat!vely hnpact Its ability to di:><;hargc its inlsslon. 
The two passer1cers Involved did not file col'nplalnts, 111ake state1nents, or conduct any !ntervlf!WS with 
the tnedia th<.lt COltld cause any cn1bnrrassn1ent upot\ TSA or necatlvcly hnpact TSA's ablllty to discharge 
its 111lsslon. And at no tl1ne, fron1 J<.lnuary 24, 7.014 to present, has th!s Incident brought 1ny 1·cllabH1ty1 

jud3n1ent or trustwo1 thiness to be questioned. 

Furthern1ore, iii your proposed disclpllnary action letter it nppears I an1 also being accuse cl of violation 
Mnnagcn'\cnt Directive 1100.73·5, paragraph 5(A){7}, ~vhich st(ltc<I thnt cn1pl,)YCC!S arc rcspo1t~!btc for 
"o/JS(.'tVlny r11ul o/Jiliino /Jy off IC/~vs1 rules, 1 e{/(J/otions and other r1othori!11fh1r po//(ie_~ cuirl H!tf<h111r:r?. '' 
Althotrr,h thfs <::hafgc does not {lppear in any pte·dedslon paperwork, jl1st as the seco11d charge was not 
listed either accusing 1ue of viol11ti11g the SPOT SOP, it does ap1lear you have indudr.d the above portion 
of tht:: TSA MD to guide your <lcdslon In regards to any cils<:lpllnory <ictlons directed towards inc. 
n1erefore in response to yo\ir reference of the above TSA MD l find th11t accusrttion to be so broad rtnd 
wldc as \Veil as inf!an1111atory and i~1sldting. I follow the laws, the rules, ond rogLtl<ttlons to un exact. I do 
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not, as you hnVP <iccu.~cd 1110 of doing, n1oke lll) n1y own rules and/or .\lllf)ly certain parts of the rules and 
regulations as! see flt. ln your offlc!al staten1ent dated on January J.'11 /014 you state''/ 11/.';o oske(/ /ii1~1 
w/Jy /Je decided to J111ve Hie /)(tsse1111ers s~vup //)s ond posse;-, <11ul /1e slotc(/ lhrit· it's <ill <1 pol"l of oviallon 
securitv, lo ff'~!· Uie .<1ys1e1;1 lo nuike sllr<! i!\ workino tli1~ v1oy i( -~hou!!J." I never said that to you or 
1nade any st(ltCl)HHlt of such to <inyone. When the incident occurred ! t1nn1ed!<ite!y calte{I you vnd 
explrtined to you what all had hilppened, If you were \ltlilblo to p<.1y attention to what I had stated then 
that is something for you to e1q1luin. Shortly after the incident Mr.IZEi3'.Z[Clri1iproached the back of tile 
checkpo!nt, l~nawani of what h11d Just t11kcn plac(~. !1 Blong with MODd<bll6l !advisee! tY1r. 

Willfil]what had occurred. Mr,II:53I§i]responde<l and stated, that at thr. end of the day I did what I did 
for the suke of uviation security, In 1ny offlclal stotemcnt I had sthndated the s11n1e sentln1ent th<it Mr. 

ITiillfilha<l just stoled to both nH1 tind M13DOi(b)(6J I Out at no tin1e did I ev(~r state to yo\i that I did 
what I d!d as part of aviation security a11d to test the systen1to1nakc sure !t's working the way it should. 
To iuake sui:h <in lnfl<11nn1atory and untruthful official stntc1nc11t Is beyond any thoughts I have, 

Charge 2: fnllurc to Follo\<J Standnrd Operating Procedures (SOP) 
MANAGEMENT !AILED TO FOLLOW THE STEPS Of PROGRESSIVE DISCIPUNE IN PROPOSING AS DAV 
SUSPENSION TMEREBYTHEMSELVES VIOLATING MD 1100·73·3, MANAGEMENT ALSO fAILEO TO 
PROVIDE THIS CHAHGE IN THE INTIAL PRE·DECISIONAL MEETING. 

Manogcn1cnt's dlsclpl!nory propos.<'11 is onJustlflcd br.<:ause It f,1Jlcd to follow progressive d!sclpllnary 
g~1tdeltnes set forth In The Handbook to TSA Managetnent Directive 1100.75-3 stat~s that <ill ;:idversc 
actlong 1nust undergo a legal sufficiency review. To be legally sufficient, the proposing off!clat n1ust 
estobllsh that: 1) The alleged tnlsconduct is s11ppo1tcd by il p(epondernnce of cvidencQ and 2) o nexus 
exists between <i lcRitltnate governtncnt Interest nnd the alleged inisconduct 3) the pct)Olty Ls 
reasonable. In this porticular case, TSA n1an<igement has failed to sustain the third quallfylng statute. 

Why was this not included in the pre-decision n1eeting? rn your Pro1,osed Disciplinary Action letter you 
stated thnt1 "Your behavior as described in Charee 2 violates <:h;ipter 3.6 of the HOO SOP which 
describes the authorl?.ed (lCtivities for a BOO perforrning WTl.. Why was this not addressed on January 
24, 2014 ;ifter the Incident occurred? ·1hls charge appe<irs 18 days after the first nieetlng an February 
10, 20111, a total of J.8 days after the !tiddont on January /.4, 2014. Wh<lt I tlon't understand is that how 
an1 I b('ing chorgcd with violating the SPOT SOP. After 1nakin11 tny inquiry for evldenc:e to support the 
alfegatlon the next thing! receive is another charge, a very serious chorp,e, Yet I have yet received <1tiy 
ans\vers to tny Inquiries <Hld find tt1ysclf facing tho sccor1d charge, 

In nddltlo11 to your allog11t!on of vlolatlng the SPOT SOP you .'i.tated I violated Chapter 3.6 describing the 
WTL p(ocedures. SPOT SOP Chapter 3.G docs not address WTL proccdlires and therefore I do not 
underst.1nd the chargo you ilre <iccuslng me of. 
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ln the Interests of not violating the SPOT SOP In this response 1 will not go into details of the SPOT 
proced1.1res I was conducting concerning WTL, or any other SPOT function within the SOP. In regards to 
your accusation to your second charge I find your accusation false due to the nature of your charge you 
outline1 as to what BDO's are not allowed to do. r also fail to see where n1anagement has provided any 
evidence what so ever to support the charge ot "Violating Chapter 3.6 of the BOO SOP" that you 
provided to me on February 28, 2014. 

As I stated, the Ml-2 lane was not 1novlng nor were any other queuing areas due to high passenger 
traffic at the tlrne. And as l pointed out prior, the Ml~2 lane should not have been operational to begin 
with due to the TSA Pre queue being fu!I and passengers standing outside the queuing area. The 
checkpoint was, once again, In vlolatlon of the Ml SOP due to the TSA Pre queue being past capacity. So 
as l stated1 I had already perfornted 111y walk lhe line procedures pr1or to the passengers exchangiog 
their own docurnents on their own. I had remained In the Ml-2 line specifically dealing with Irate 
passengers fron) the TSA Pre queue and other Irate passengers in the Ml-2 queue and those In the 
general boarding lane. As a few passengers made it past TOC that Is when I noticed TSOWi.lifilnot 
performing his duties correctly, which was violating the TDC SOP. Agaln, that was my observation and 
the observation of F.Roa1bl<6l I 

In regards to statements of the eyents: 

In your staten1ent you state that I did not tell you that l had two passengers swap their tdentiflc{ltlon 
and boarding passes, to which I recall tell Ing you exactly what had just occurred prior to speaking with 
srscl?b'jifil] Furthermore, you statement goes on to say I made a dec1s!on to "tes.t the system to make 
sure It's working the way it should." At NO point did I ever make that staternent to you or to anyone 
else, reg1Jrding this event or a11y other event. After the rncldent took place I notified you Immediately 
~t to speak with the supervisor, STS~ Within a few 1nlnutes, If that1 myself and MBOO 
~exited the checkpoint and as we dfd so we ran into STS b)(6) who approached the 

back of the A35 checkpolrit. STSM j(b)(6) I came over to us both, BOO (b)(6) and n1yself, and I briefing 
Mrfllill§Dalloutwhat just had occurred with the TDC Issue, MrlIE3I[[]stated, "At the end of the day 
you did what you dld for the sake of aviation security," BDQith)(6l !was standing right there when Mr. 
~made the staten1ent, to which we both agreed. At NO Ume did I ever tell you that I based ruy 
actions to "test the system to make sure It's working the way It should." 
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In Conclusion: 
In your letter you go on to stat\! that you understand my 11motlvatlon" to expose a perceived security 
vulnerab!l!ty but the fact reroarns that It is out of the scope of my authority and responslbllities to 
conduct covert testing on co-workers. Addlt!onaUyyou replled to rny statement In regards to addressing 
no one in the lravellng publlc knowlng what was going on by stating the "two passengers who 
parUclpated" due to a TSA employee requP.stJng their participation. My response to that is that entire 
state1nent ls filled with complete lnaccurac!es. There was no motivation on 1ny part to 'iexpose" any 
vulnerab!ltty. I was not conducting any type of testing on co-workers and at no time did r authorize, 
encourage, or request the two passengers to switch thelr boarding passes and identifications. My 
com1nent \Vas simply that and nol one of which I "enlisted" t\vo passengers to assist In any type of 
testing. You continue on In your letter accusing me of "covert" testing In many Instances, Then you 
stated that my action~ could have led to a ser!olls security breach and go on about the potentllll 
negative notoriety I could have brought upon the agency, calHng Into question the Integrity of not only 
myself but all TSA OFW employees. I find It very lnsultlng that now, after almost 12 years of dedicated 
servlc.e to the TSA, my integrity Is being questioned. That no\v I am loQked upon as a rhk, as you stated 
!n your comment about the lack of confidence you have In my ability to <'.arty out the wide range of 
responslbllltles required of tny position. At no time, now or in the past, with TSA have t ever conducted 
n1yself In any 1nanner that would jeopardize my lntegrity1 honesty, and trustworthiness. Whether with 
the public or within TSA t have always taken pride In knowing that the publlc1 my peers, and those in the 
TSA leadership staff have one hundred percent confidence in my ablUtles and trust me beyond one 
hundred percent. In addition I would llke to ask, at What point In the SPOT program were briefings and 
recurrent tralnlng speclf/cally speak about overt or covert testing that I am or am not allo\vcd to 
perform? 

In my twelve years with the Tral'tsportatlon Security Administration 1 can honestly say, up until this 
point, there: has never been a time where 1 have been accused by management for not only 
embarrassing this agency but furthermore violating standard operQtlng procedures, I take my Job wlth 
the utmost seriousness because I know that I am responsible for llterally thousands of lives each and 
every day. I have been a public servant for almost twenty years and one thing I can say Is that when it 
cornes to protecting the pubflc1 when It comes to foflowlng the rules and regulations, whe~1 it co1nes to 
followlng the law1 when It comes to followlng operating procedures, and when It come performing my 
duties 1 do so with pride and commitment. Each and every day l get dressed to come to work I know 
that thousands of Innocent 1nen, women1 and children depend on rne to ensure their safety, I take that 
responslbility to heart because If I falter, If r fall, and If I cannot perform my tasks on any level as a pub Uc 
servant that could cost innocent Hves, I am tasked with a responslbHlty to serve the public and have the 
public place their trust In me to protect thern1 their fan1ilies, and 1helr loved ones as they travel. My 
duties are not only specific to when I'm on duty at the airport, it's when l'rn off-duty as well. l take pride 
in that fact that there are others out there who are dependent on those who take that oath to serve and 
protect, to defend and to honor, to ensure pubUc safety. To know that In an lnstant1 where seconds 
count, I wll! act In a spilt-second when It comes to protecting those who place their trust in me to ensure 
their safety or to protect those who are una\vare. Therefore to be accused of not fo!lowlng policy, 
vlolat!ng standard operating procedures, and have It stated to me that my credltabllity and 
trustworthiness Is In question Is not only very Insulting !t's Inflammatory and disrespectful. As a front 
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line officer within a "counter t<!rrorlsrn" agency there are challenges each and every day and I face those 
challenges knowing that at any moment I could lose my llfe, that my fellow officers could lose their llves, 
and that the pllbllc that I protect could also be put into harm's way, But r do not hesitate or falter and t 
go out there and give one hundred and ten percent of myself every day1 while on or off-duty, for which I 
have done for the past twelv(! years with TSA. I do not look for recognition or praise or reward, 
regardless of any actions I take on or off-duty. However an I do ask fo( is (espect and at times a sense af 
understanding. 

From the mlnute I t<iok my oath Jn August 2002 to this very rnfnute, as I type my response to address my 
accusations, rny resolve has not altered or changed. I stand ready to defend my nation, mv government, 
and carry out the duties I have been charged with performing wUh the utmost seriousness and respect. 
In all n1y y~ars as a public servant l have never been so Insulted as to have my reliability, judgment or 
trustworthiness challenged by a superior or fro1n anyone else. Not only do I find your accusation 
Jnsultfng I find It slanderous and without merit of evldenci:i to support such an accusatlOlt 

Respectfully Submitted, 
11,11e1 I 
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Date: 

To: 

From: 

February 28, 2014 

libi161 I 
Expert Transportation Security Officer (BDO) 
Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport 

11b11s1 I 
Transportation Security Manager (ODO) 
Dallas/Foil Worth International Airport 

tJ.S. Dcpllrlrncn! ofllomdand Sttudt)· 
DF\V J11(ei·naU<J11~l Alqio1·1 
!i10 Airline J)fh'C 
Co11pdlTX 75019 

Transportation 
Security 
Administration 

Subject: Proposed Five (5) Day Suspension 

Reference: 

You are l1ereby notified that I am proposing you be suspended from duty without pay for 
five (5) calendar days in order to promote the efficiency of the Federal service. If a 
decision is made to suspend you, it will not be made or effected earlier than your reply. If 
you do not reply, a decision will not be made earlier than seven (7) calendar days from 
the date you receive this letter. This proposal is based on the following: 

Qifilge 1: Failure to Follow Policy 

Specification: On January 24, 2014, you were assigned to perform Walk The Line 
(WTL) procedures at tile Managed Inclusion II (Ml-2) lane at Checkpoint A-35. 
You conducted an unauthorized covert test by requesting two passengers to switch 
identification and boarding passes in an attempt to see if the TSO performing 
Travel Document Check (TDC) procedures would notice. You were not authori7.ed 
to perform this self-initiated testing. You were made aware of the proper 
procedures through your recurrent training and briefings. Your actions constitute 
of a violation of this policy. 

CliaJge 2: Failure to Follow Standard Operaling Procedures (SOP) 

Specification: On January 24, 2014, you were assigned to perform Walk The Line 
(WTL) procedures at the Managed Inclusion II (Ml-2) lane at Checkpoint A-35, 
You failed to perform WTL procedures as described in the BDO SOP. You were 
mode aware of the proper procedures through your recurrent training and briefings. 
Your actions constitute of a violation of this policy. 
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As background, on January 24, 2014, you were assigned to perform Walk The Line 
(WTL) procedures a he M aged Inclusion II (Ml-2) lane at Checkpoint A-35. You 
observed TSO 1'1161 performing TDC duties for the same lane. In your o inion 

lbJ(6J was not being thorough eno,gh in ~is duties. You spoke with BOO lbJl6J 
lbl\61 ~ding your concerns and BDO lbl\61 agreed he had the same concerns. 
BDO lllill§D stated t~t~?)ou tould get two passengers to switch Identification and see If It 
was noticed by TSO b 6 You then approached two female passengers waiting in the 
queue and requested for them to switch identification and boarding passes. You did not 
inform the supervisor of the checkpoint of your request to the passengers nor did you 
have the authority to make such a request. 

Both passen ors entered the Ml-2 lane with the incorrect Identification and were checked 
by ISO ibJi61 TSOHbJ(6J !did not detect the switch and allowed both passengers to 
enter Into the checkpoint. Alter their entry into the checkpoint you brought both 
passengers to a different TDC station and checked each one's proper Identification and 
boarding pass before either passenger proceeded through he checkpoint. You then 
notified BDO management and Checkpoint STSOHbl\61 I of the incident. 

On Februa1y 10, 2014, I had a pre-decision meeting with you In which you were given the 
opportunity to reply orally and/or in writing. You provided a written statement In which you 
asserted that no nexus could be drawn between your activity and public perception. You 
stated no one In the traveling public was aware of what had occurred other than you and 
the two other BDOs at the Checkpoint. You stated the two passengers did not have any 
questions or reactions concerning tho event and that they were properly screened. Next, 
you questioned if complaints had been filed or there had been any media attention to the 
event. 

Finally, you stated In your twelve years of service you had never had any type of 
disciplinary action, caused embarrassment to the agency or had any negative impact with 
TSA or the general public. You stated you take whal you do very seriously and take pride 
in the fact that you provided safely and security to the public. 

Although I understand your motivation may have been to expose a perceived security 
vulnerability, the fact remains that It is out of scope of your authority and responsibilities to 
conduct covert testing on co-workers. Additionally, your statement that no one in the 
traveling public was aware of what occurred is not entirely accurate as the two 
passengers that participated were fully aware of the incident as well as the fact that a 
ISA employee requested their participation. 

Your behavior as described in Charge 1 violates TSA Management Directive 1100.73-5, 
Employee Responsibilities a11d Code of Conduct, paragraph 5(A)(7) which states that, 
employees are responsible for "observing and abiding by all laws, rules, regulations and 
other authoritative policies a11d guidance." 
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Your behavior as described In Charge 2 violates Chapter 3.6 of the BDO SOP which 
describes the authorized activities for a BDO performing WTL. 

Additionally, your behavior violates TSA MD 1100.73·5, paragraph 6(E) which states 
"While on or off-duty, employees are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that 
does not adversely reflect on TSA, or negatively impact Its ability to discharge its mission, 
cause embarrassment to the agency, or cause the public and/or TSA to question the 
employee's reliability, judgment or trustworlhlness." 

In determining the appropriateness of the penalty, I have considered a number of factors. 
First and foremost, I considered the seriousness of the offenses and the relation to your 
position. As an Expert TSO (BDO), you are held to a higher standard of conduct because 
you are looked upon by the public as a trusted public servant as you carry out the security 
functions of your position. Your failure to follow standardized protocol and creating your 
covert testing, could have led to a serious security breach, The potential negative 
notoriety which you could bring to the agency adversely affected the agency's mission by 
calling Into question the Integrity of not only yourself but all TSA DFW employees. 
Additionally, we cannot tolerate employee's picking and choosing which portions of the 
SOP they will chose to follow. Your conduct causes me great concern and has seriously 
diminished my confidence In your ability to carry out the wide range of responsibilities 
required of your position. It is important that both TSA and the public have complete trust 
and confidence that you will perform your duties with honesty and Integrity. 

As mitigating factors, I considered that you are a long-term employee and your overall 
performance has been satisfactory and you have had no disciplinary actions, since your 
hire date of August 25, 2002. You are technically proficient In all or your screening duties 
and have consistently supported the model workplace. I also gave weight to the fact that 
the passengers' correct Identification and boarding passes were checked before they 
proceeded into the sterile area. However, I find that the nature and seriousness of your 
conduct In these instances outweigh the mitigating factors and warrants this proposed 
suspension. 

In accordance with TSA policy, the penally selected is In accordance with TSA's Table of 
Offenses and Penalties (Table), section D (4) Failure to Follow Polley, in which the 
recommended penalty range Is a Letter of Reprimand to a 14-day suspension and the 
aggravated penalty range is 15-day suspension to removal. The penalty selected is also 
In accordance with the Table, section M (1) Failure to Follow Standard Operating 
Procedures, In which the recommended penalty range is a 5-day suspension to removal, 
and the aggravated penalty range is removal. TSA policy states when an employee 
commits more than one offense, the aggravated penalty range of the more serious 
offense may be considered; however I determined that a 5 day suspension is appropriate 
due to your lack of disciplinary record and your tenure with TSA. Therefore this proposed 
suspension is consistent with the Table and thus with actions taken against other 
employees who have engaged In the same or similar offenses. Additionally, I determined 
that this Is the least severe action to be used to correct this issue. 
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This notice is a proposal and not a decision. You have the right to reply to this proposal 
orally and/or In writing and furnish any evidence in support of your reply within seven (7) 
calendar days after the date you receive this proposal. Consideration may be given to 
extending this time limit If you submit a written request stating your reasons for needing 
more time before the seven days expires. Your written reply and any evidence should be 
sent to the Deciding Official, Juan Ovalle, Deputy Assistant Federal Security Director. 
You may make arrangements for an oral reply by contacting Mr. Ovalle at 972-456~1bll61 I 

You have the right to be represented by an individual of your choice in preparing and 
presenting any reply. As a unit employee, you may select a representative from AFGE to 
serve as your personal representative, but you are not required to do so. Please note that 
while you may select any individual to serve as your personal representative consistent 
with TSA policy, you may not select an individual employed by any union other than 
AFGE to serve as your personal representative. It you choose to have a representative, 
you must provide your representative's name in writing to Juan Ovalle before the 
expiration of the reply period and you must provide written notice of any change In 
representation. Management has the right to disallow your representative If the 
representation creates a conflict of interest or position or, where the representative ts a 
TSA employee, If he or she cannot be spared because of critical TSA work. You are 
responsible for alt costs associated with your representation, including any travel 
expenses. You may refer to TSA MD 1100.63-3, Employee Representation, for additional 
information. The material relied upon is attached and is only released to you and/or your 
designated representative. 

You may request a reasonable amount of official time to prepare and present your reply, If 
you are in a duty status. Arrangements for the use of official time for these purposes 
must be made in advance and in writing. Your representative, if a TSA employee, may 
request a reasonable amount of official time for these purposes, if in a duty status. He or 
she must make arrangements for the use of official time for such purpose with his or her 
supervisor. In the situation where a chosen representative has a schedule conflict and 
cannot represent the employee during the requested time period, an alternative official 
time period should be identified and should be approved within a reasonable time 
thereafter. 

A final decision will not be made in this matter until your reply has been received and 
considered, or if no timely reply is received, until after the time specified for the reply has 
passed. I have attached the material relied on to support this proposed suspension. 

If you need assistance in dealing with any personal matters, the Employee Assistance 
Program (EAP) is available to provide confidential counseling services. EAP can be 
reached by calling 1-800-222-0364. 
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(b)(6) 

Please sign the acknowledgement of receipt below. Your signature does not indicate 
agreement with this action; it only represents receipt of this notice on the date signed. 

(b)(6) 

-Or-

Hand Delivered By oaie 
Material relied on to support proposal: 
Pre-Decision Meeting Discussion and Response dated 02/10/14 
Employee Statement dated 01/24/13 
(bJl61 Statement dated 01/24/14 
\niiimdStatement dated 01/24/14 
""""""S'i::tatement dated 01/24/14 

tatement dated 01124/14 

'---' 
Statement dated 01/24/14 
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Summary of Pre.Decision Discussion with Employee 

On 021101201 I met w1.th (b)(6) 
-(insert tJnii;) -------' {insert ~rnployeb'$ n11me and j<.lb title) 

to have a Pre"Discipline Decision DJscussioit At that Un1e· 

~- I advised the employee of the following allegations and 
consequonces of the following allegatlon(s): 

tho possible '.\.,· 

Allegation #1: Violated ISA MD 1100.73·5 Employoe Responsjbj!jties and Code 
.Qf Cq_~ctlon 6.E by ~9JJ.@clinq ao l.Jnsaoctiooed test of a TSA TDC Officer. 
utilizing lhe public at Checkpoint A35 on January 26. 2014. 

CJ I provided the employee an opportunity to respond orally and/or in writing, 

I have advised the employee that If facts support that the alleg~tlone 
occurred and policy was violated, discipllne could result up to and including 
ren1oval from Federal Service. 

The employee responded as follows: 
__ Orally on ---··········---······--······" r:'lnd st<1ted as follows: ··- ····-----··· .. ·­

(10$ertda1e1 

·---·-··---

(If more space is oeed8(1, tttlach atk111ioo~I p~get l 

~ Jn writing on l(b)(S) I 
(lusml dalll) 

I have attached a copy of lhe written 

rospon (b)(6) 

Signa~~ .• ,,,,.--,;;;;;;;:'n;""";;;;;;;;;;;;;-:;;-.;;;;;:;;;;;:;;;-~ 
" Narno ~ T1!le of M~nagor 01 SupOIVISQt O~to 
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(b)(6) 




